City Council Meeting Minutes - Draft February 20, 2018

City of Valdez

212 Chenega Ave.
Valdez, AK 99686

City Council

WORK SESSION AGENDA - 5:30 pm
Minutes not transcribed for work sessions. Audio available online and by request.
Work Session: Valdez Senior Center

Page 1
City of Valdez



City Council Meeting Minutes - Draft February 20, 2018

REGULAR AGENDA - 7:00 PM
l. CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Knight called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m. in Valdez City Council Chambers.
Il. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Valdez City Council led the Pledge of Allegiance to the
.  ROLL CALL

Present. 5 - Mayor Ruth E. Knight

Council Member Christ
Council Member Lon
Council Member Ji
Council Member

Excused:

Also Present: 4 - City Ma
City Cler
Records

IV. PUBLIC BUSINE

Approva qguor License Renewals: Fraternal Order of Eagles
#1971, Mikes Palace #892 and Mountain Sky Hotel and Restaurant

#5310.

5. Approval To Go Into Executive Session Regarding: (1.) City Manager
Evaluation and (2.) Update from City Attorney Regarding Pending
Litigation

6. Approval of 2018 Community Purpose Property Tax Exemption

Program Applications

Page 2
City of Valdez



City Council Meeting Minutes - Draft February 20, 2018

MOTION: Council Member Moulton moved, seconded by Council Member Reese,
to approve the Consent Agenda. The motion carried by the following vote.

VOTE ON THE MOTION:

Yays: 5 - Mayor Knight, Council Member Moulton, Council Member Needles,
Council Member Shirrell and Council Member

Absent: 2 - Council Member Fleming and Council er Smith

VI. NEW BUSINESS

1. Appointment to the Economic Diversifi

MOTION: Council Member Moulton
to appoint Laurine Regan, to serve a
Diversification Commission. The motio i e following vote after the
following discussion occurrgd.

plication. That way, if a well
as already represented on the

Needles, to approve contract with Wolverine Supply, Inc. in the amount of
$785,000 for Valdez City Schools ADA Restroom Upgrades. The motion carried by
the following vote after the following discussion occurred.

Council Member Reese asked if the project was due for completion in October
2018. Mr. Nathan Duval, Capital Facilities Director, replied the completion date
listed in the contract was August 6, 2018. Council Member Shirrell asked if the
Valdez High School Swimming pool renovation project was related to this upgrade.

Page 3
City of Valdez



City Council Meeting Minutes - Draft February 20, 2018

City of Valdez

Mr. Duval replied that it was not.
VOTE ON THE MOTION:

Yays: 5 - Mayor Knight, Council Member Moulton, Council Member Needles,
Council Member Shirrell and Council Member Reese

Absent: 2 - Council Member Fleming and Council

Approval of Contract Amendment #1 with
for Valdez Schools ADA Restroom Reno

MOTION: Council Member Moulton m
to approve Contract Amendment # or Valdez

Schools ADA Restroom Renovations ion carried
by the following vote.

VOTE ON THE MOTION:

5 - Mayor Knight, Co f ncil Member Needles,
: mber Reese

Yays:

Absent:;

DiscussioO

improving efficiency. He explained there are a number of aging network devices
currently employed by the City which pose security risks. He explained patching on
those devices had not been maintained. He said the overall network strategy was
outdated, creating utilization inefficiencies for staff, and increasing cost for less
bandwidth. He also identified departmental redundancy which also increases
costs. Much of the hardware and software used by the City is no longer being
supported by their respective hardware and software manufacturers. The City’s

Page 4



City Council Meeting Minutes - Draft February 20, 2018

servers were close to reaching their lifespan and were not being patched
consistently. He explained the City server room was also at maximum capacity and
required emergency ventilation.

Mr. Lynch explained the City is currently using Microsoft Office 2007, an operating
system no longer supported by Microsoft. He warned against phishing attempts as
a potential vulnerability. He recommended standardizin ktop software and
ensuring the City’s operating system licenses are up ndard. He hoped to see
the IT department focus on improving security, re aging devices, and
implementing best practices for safety and sec He urged the City to
lay a City owned fiber optic network to buildd increase security
and recommended constructing a new s id he hoped that
Valdez would consider building stron community,

Council Member Needles expressed dis [ nt that the City was behind on IT
services and asked the ap i leting the recommended
updates. Mr. Lynch said heywa ' [ ity Manager and Copper Valley
ate. Council Member

f staff training costs would be included in the
ed staff training could reduce costs. Mayor

maintaining the network, which had been previously done by the IT Director. He
stated, otherwise, the department was adequately staffed. Council Member
Moulton requested a copy of the IT Strategic Plan.

Page 5
City of Valdez



City Council Meeting Minutes - Draft February 20, 2018

5.

City of Valdez

Discussion Item: 2018 Legislative Priorities

Mayor Knight announced that from March 12-14™" members of City Council and
City administration would be in Juneau, Alaska for the Alaska Municipal League
legislative session. She clarified the City’s state legislative priority items had been
previously voted on or determined through the Alaska Municipal League legislative
priorities list. Council Member Shirrell said he supported stated priorities and
added he would like a formal agenda for the Juneau t vised. Mayor Knight
agreed and said she had been working with the Ci ager and City Clerk to
accomplish an agenda. Council Member Shirre uld like to see a

The City CO ]
: Depar eet the new Alaska State Senator, and

list of priofities to incorporate into the session. She said she would follow up and
create a draft of Council’s priorities for the next meeting.

Ms. Doom stated the new Assistant City Manager, Mr. Phil Miller, would also be
attending the Juneau session and said she would communicate with Mr. Jeremy
Talbot, Ports and Harbor Director, and Ms. Martha Barberio, Economic
Development Director, to determine if they were also able to attend.

Page 6



City Council Meeting Minutes - Draft February 20, 2018

VIl.  ORDINANCES

1.

VIll.  RESOLUTIO

City of Valdez

#18-02 - Amending Title 1 Chapter 1.08 of the Valdez Municipal Code
Titled General Penalty - Continuing Violations. First Reading. Public
Hearing.

MOTION: Council Member Moulton moved, seconded by Council Member
Shirrell, to Approve Ordinance # 18-02, amending Title la.Chapter 1.08 of the
Valdez Municipal Code titled General Penalty - Conti iolations. First
reading. Public hearing. The motion carried by the ing vote after the
following discussion occurred.

Council Member Reese asked how the fe determined for the
ordinance. Ms. Pierce replied the fees he same as tho ich had been
previously adopted in the Animal Or, r. Staser,
added he, the Police Chief, and Ms¥
fair fee schedule, bearing in mind the

VOTE ON THE MOTIO

Yays: 5 - Mayor Knight, » ouncil Member Needles,
Couaeil Member £ ' er Reese

Absent:

Council M@mber Reese asked Ms. Marcie Robertson, Interim Parks and
Recreation Director, if she knew of the University of Alaska threatening to not
renew their land use permit with the City. Ms. Robertson replied the permit was
extended to 2020 and had been renewed in late 2017. Council Member Moulton
asked if there were any zoning stipulations for the parcel. Ms. Pierce replied the
majority of the plot was wetlands. Mr. Paul Nylund, Interim Community
Development Director, replied there were no use stipulations; however, half of the
property was designated wetlands or flood plain. He explained that only part of

Page 7



City Council Meeting Minutes - Draft February 20, 2018

City of Valdez

the parcel was developable for trail systems and there were currently no other
development plans for the lot.

Council Member Shirrell asked if there was an opportunity for residential
expansion on the lot. Mr. Nylund replied part of the land was buildable, but it was
located a significant distance from the existing infrastructure and also in an
avalanche risk zone. Ms. Robertson explained the maj of the lot was
marshland, and unless it was filled it was mostly un pable. Council Member
Shirrell asked if the City had full access to the pr Ms. Robertson replied
there was limited accessibility in summer bec equipment and
vehicles to the lot was restricted by the cargi e bridge. Council
Member Shirrell said he would like to e full use of the

property.

VOTE ON THE MOTION:

Yays: 5 - Mayor Knigh cil Member ton, Council Member Needles,
Council MembeRS

ansferring $50,000 from
Genera unds and Appropriating $50,000 to
2] t Program

ved, seconded by Council Member Reese,
ding the 2018 City Budget by transferring

al Fund Balance to Reserve Funds, and appropriating same
eimbursement program. The motion carried by the

pwing discussion occurred.

eese asked when the SHARP Il program was scheduled to
t explained the State of Alaska had not taken any action to

was in contact with the SHARP administrator from Juneau and would have more
information going forward. The SHARP Il funds were in trust with the City. This
resolution was to move those dollars out of the General Fund.

Mayor Knight asked if the SHARP Il program included tuition reimbursement for

all healthcare professionals, not just primary care physicians. Mr. O’Neil replied

that it did. Council Member Reese asked what the cost of maintaining the funds

was to the City. Mr. Carlson replied the effort to maintain the fund was negligible,
Page 8



City Council Meeting Minutes - Draft February 20, 2018

City of Valdez

only requiring he communicate with the SHARP administrator to determine the
status of the program.

Council Member Shirrell asked if City Council would have the ability to decide how
to allocate the funds if SHARP Il was created. Mr. O’Neil explained SHARP Il
was designed as a private-public incentive program to provide student debt relief
to physicians practicing in rural communities. Council er Shirrell asked
again if City Council would decide how the Provide ds were spent. Mr.
O’Neil stated he did not know.

voiced his disapproval that the 20 i 50,000
was allocated towards a program int
working for a private enterprise. He sai

much rather see the funds
inted out she had personally

Valdez in search of work
place opportunities that pro ight said the SHARP |lI

program would make Valdez &

ouncil Member Moulton clarified the funds
2d from the Providence Regional Board.

Council Member Shirrell asked if the money would have to go through the budget
process should the SHARP Il program be created. Council Member Reese asked
if it was possible to return the funds to Providence. Mr. O’Neil replied Providence
was not interested in having the funds returned and wanted to see them allocated
to SHARRP lll. Council Member Reese asked if the funds could be reallocated and
remain local. Mr. O’Neil said he could certainly find something to spend $50,000
on. Mayor Knight reminded Council this vote was simply on whether or not to

Page 9



City Council Meeting Minutes - Draft February 20, 2018

City of Valdez

keep the money in the Sharp Il fund or move it to the City General Fund.

Council Member Shirrell moved to postpone the decision to the next Council
meeting to give Providence time to determine how to use the fund locally. The
motion to post pone failed.

MOTION TO AMEND: Council Member Shirrell moved
Member Needles to postpone approval of Resolutio
City Council Meeting.

onded by Council
-07 until the next regular

VOTE ON THE MOTION TO AMEND (MO

Yays: 3 - Council Member Needles, il Member Shirrell a uncil Member

Reese

Nays: 2 - Mayor Knight and Council Me

2017 Valdez Parks, Recreation and Cultural Services Year End Report

Mayor Knight invited the listening public to view the many programs and services
offered by Parks and Recreation on the City website. Council Member Needles
thanked Ms. Robertson for her leadership of the Parks, Recreation, and Cultural
Services Department.

Page 10



City Council Meeting Minutes - Draft February 20, 2018

3.

X. CITY

City of Valdez

Alaskan Greenery Commercial Marijuana Inspection Report/Herbal
Outfitters Commercial Marijuana Inspection Report/DKW Farms LLC
Commercial Marijuana Inspection Report

Council Member Moulton remarked he was pleased to see the business utilizing
good communication and maintaining compliance. Council Member Shirrell said
all the local commercial marijuana license holders had ed inspections with
flying colors. Chief of Police Bart Hinkle seconded Il Member Shirrell’s
sentiment.

MANAGER / CITY CLERK / CITY ATTOR PORTS

City Manager Report

ete, the finished carvings would belong to the
emarked the recent Valdez Ice Climbing Festival and the
2 Fundraiser dinner had both been a success.

Valdez.

Ms. Pierce reminded Council of the upcoming Procurement work session on
February 22", She said there would be a written draft of the updates to
procurement code prepared for review soon. She hoped to have the procurement
ordinance ready for first reading at the next regular Council agenda. She
explained she was also working on the abatement, nuisance, and appeals
sections of municipal code. As drafts were complete, they would be forwarded to

Page 11



City Council Meeting Minutes - Draft February 20, 2018

Council for review. Council Member Moulton asked if the materials from the Code
Revision Task force would be considered. Ms. Pierce asked Council Member
Moulton to send the material to her so it could be included in the revision process,
as input from the Task Force had not been forwarded to her from the previous
Community Development Director.

Ms. Pierce announced there were openings for the Ma
School Board seats in the upcoming May 15t munici
the listening public to obtain nominating petitions
they were interested in running for office.

City Council and
ction and encouraged
e City Clerk’s Office if

3. City Attorney Report

Mr. Staser stated he submitted a final | [ i andum and

4. City Mayor Report

Mayor Knight summarized her
made a motion to approve the Ci ing the C-Plan. Mr. Staser
added the City wo [ ' g request on February 23",

Mayor Knig ily News (ADN) had contacted her about the Federal
Energy ReQ atter and thanked the City Attorney for
working with

XI. COUNCIL BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR

Council Member Moulton stated the airport public restroom was much improved. He added
while he was excited to see interest in constructing more senior housing options, he did not
want to see affordable housing for young professionals become de-prioritized.

Council Member Needles said he would like regular reports from the various boards the City

Page 12
City of Valdez



City Council Meeting Minutes - Draft February 20, 2018

Council oversees and have them phased into the regular Council agendas. He added
because City Council manages the contract with Providence Valdez Medical Center, he would
like to go over the contract with Council members and the City Attorney to fully understand its
scope. Mayor Knight asked if there were other entities that fall under the same category, such
as the Museum and Senior Center. She suggested that those contracts be visited during that
time as well. Council Member Needles replied that he would like to see those contracts
reviewed. Ms. Pierce clarified the only contract that Council mana r the Valdez Senior
Center was the lease agreement. Council Member Needles reit he would like to better
understand the agreements and management responsibilitie Council.

Council Member Shirrell remarked the Valentine’s Day nd College
fundraising dinner had been a success. He hoped t r making it a
regular event. He added he would like to see dis harp 11l

XIl. EXECUTIVE SESSION

City Council transitioned into Executi
XIll. RETURN FROM EXECUTIVE
City Council returned from EX
XIV.  ADJOURNMER

There being no furg journed the meeting at 10:10 p.m.

Page 13

City of Valdez



